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Independent Auditor’s Report 
 
To the Shareholders of National Insurance Company - Public Shareholding 
Company 
 
Report on the audit of the financial statements 
 
Opinion 
 
In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the financial 
position of National Insurance Company - Public Shareholding Company. (hereinafter the 
“Company”) as at December 31, 2016, and its financial performance and its cash flows for 
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards.  
 
What we have audited 
 
The Company’s financial statements comprise: 

 
● the statement of financial position as at December 31, 2016; 
● the statement of income for the year then ended; 
● the statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended; 
● the statement of changes in equity for the year then ended; 
● the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; 
● the notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant 

accounting policies. 
 

Basis for opinion 
 
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). 
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements section of our report.   
 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide 
a basis for our opinion.   
 
Independence 
 
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards 
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code). We have 
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. 
 
Our audit approach 
 
Overview  
Key Audit Matters Insurance contract liabilities  
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Independent auditor’s report (continued) 
 
To the Shareholders of National Insurance Company - Public Shareholding 
Company (continued) 
 
As part of designing our audit, we determined materiality and assessed the risks of material 
misstatements in the financial statements. In particular, we considered where management 
made subjective judgments; for example, in respect of significant accounting estimates that 
involved making assumptions and considering future events that are inherently uncertain.  
As in all of our audits, we also addressed the risk of management's override of internal 
controls, including among other matters, consideration of whether there was evidence of 
bias that represented a risk of material misstatements due to fraud. 
 

We tailored the scope of our audit to perform sufficient procedures to enable us to provide 
an opinion on the financial statements as a whole, taking into account the structure of the 
Company, the accounting processes and controls, and the industry in which the Company 
operates. 
 

Key Audit Matters 
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most 
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters 
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in 
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.  
 

 
Key Audit Matter 

How our audit  addressed the Key 
Audit Matter 

Insurance Contract Liabilities 
The Company’s insurance contract liabilities, which 
include outstanding claim reserves and incurred but 
not reported reserve (IBNR), represent 73% of the 
total liabilities. Due to the magnitude of the balances 
and the estimation uncertainty and subjectivity 
involved in the assessment of these liabilities we have 
considered the valuation of the insurance contract 
liabilities as a key audit matter.  
 
The estimation of insurance contract liabilities, in 
particular the outstanding claims reserve and the 
IBNR reserve, involves significant degree of 
judgment. These liabilities are based on the best-
estimate of the ultimate cost of all claims incurred 
but not settled at a given date, whether reported or 
not. 
 
We draw attention to Note 13 to the accompanying 
financial statements, which states that management 
recognized a total amount of USD 27,023,290 as 
outstanding claim reserve and IBNR as of December 
31, 2016. 

 
Our audit involved the following 
procedures in testing the insurance 
contract liabilities: 
 Tested a sample of controls over the 

initiation, review and approval of the 
claim process across the different 
insurance segments including the 
claim settlement process. 

 Tested a sample of outstanding 
claims recorded by management by 
reviewing loss adjusters’ reports, 
internal policies for reserves and 
assumptions that could be implicit or 
explicit and relates to expected 
settlement amount and settlement 
patterns of claims. 

 Evaluated the objectivity, 
independence and expertise of the 
actuarial valuator appointed by 
management. 

 Tested the accuracy and 
completeness of the underlying data 
used as inputs for the valuation. 

 Involved our internal specialist to 
evaluate the methodology and 
assumptions used by the external 
actuary appointed by management. 
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Independent auditor’s report (continued) 
 
To the Shareholders of National Insurance Company - Public Shareholding 
Company (continued) 
 
Management’s responsibility and those charged with governance for the 
financial statements  
 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in accordance with IFRS, applicable laws in the State of Palestine and for such 
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.  
 
In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the 
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related 
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either 
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease its operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so.  
 
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial 
reporting process. 
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements  
 
Our objectives are to obtain  reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as 
a whole are free from material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion.  Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with IFRSs will 
always detect a material misstatement when it exists.  Misstatements can arise from fraud or 
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably 
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.  
 
As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgment and 
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also: 
 

● Identify and assess the risk of material misstatements of the financial statements, 
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to 
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a 
basis for our opinion.  The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve 
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control. 

 
● Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design 

audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control. 
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Independent auditor’s report (continued) 
 
To the Shareholders of National Insurance Company - Public Shareholding 
Company (continued) 
 
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements (continued) 
 

● Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of 
accounting estimate and related disclosures made by management.    

 
● Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of 

accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's 
ability to continue as a going concern.  If we conclude that a material uncertainty 
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify 
our opinion.  Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date 
of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company 
to cease to continue as a going concern. 

 
● Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, 

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the 
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation. 

 
We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.  
 
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with 
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all 
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.   
 
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those 
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current 
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s 
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in 
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in 
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 
 
 

For PricewaterhouseCoopers  
 
Hratch Shahrikian 
License number 111/2012 
 
Ramallah, Palestine : March 14, 2017 
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION  
(All amounts in US Dollars) 

Note 
December 31, 

2016  
December 31, 

2015 
January 1, 

2015 

     
Restated 
 (Note 30)  

Restated 
(Note 30) 

ASSETS   
Non-current assets   
Property and equipment (5) 3,552,363  3,374,048 3,523,155 
Investment in subsidiaries (6) 13,194,520  12,775,465 11,474,671 
Deferred tax assets (7) 1,532,382  1,533,286 1,960,790 
Investment in associates (8) -  - 218,279 
Available-for-sale financial assets (9) 2,321,896  1,660,700 1,399,877 
Held to maturity investments (10) 5,904,158  1,877,592 -  
Checks under collection due after one year 99,219  158,868 35,864 

26,604,538  21,379,959 18,612,636 
Current assets     
Loans to related parties (8) -   - 1,797,461 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (11) 12,414,265  13,249,313 17,579,825 
Accounts receivable (12) 6,739,652  7,228,963 8,144,880 
Reinsurance contracts assets (13) 7,912,668  4,024,752 3,107,031 
Insurance and reinsurance companies receivable (14) 1,210,352  1,069,978 1,626,408 
Other current assets (15) 690,538  653,599 635,476 
Checks under collection due within a year 8,712,830  6,619,336 5,303,108 
Deposits at banks (16) 15,873,145  16,631,922 12,076,272 
Cash and Cash Equivalents (17) 1,643,257  679,178 605,349 

55,196,707  50,157,041 50,875,810 
Total assets 81,801,245  71,537,000 69,488,446 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    
Equity    
Paid-in share capital (1) 12,000,000  12,000,000 12,000,000 
Statutory reserve (19) 5,735,443  5,338,173 5,112,140 
Voluntary reserve (19) 3,000,000  3,000,000 3,000,000 
Fair value adjustment reserve (9) 85,689   )39,354(  )51,491(  
Retained earnings 6,438,453  4,363,028 4,128,729 
Total equity 27,259,585  24,661,847 24,189,378 

    
Liabilities     
Non-current liabilities     
Provision for employees’ indemnity (20) 3,347,077  3,289,985 2,968,955 
        
Current liabilities     
Insurance contracts liabilities (13) 41,459,004  35,042,898 33,257,717 
Insurance and reinsurance companies payable (21) 2,635,463  1,994,898 1,409,282 
Accounts payable (22) 3,161,531  3,025,439 3,102,178 
Tax provisions (23)  1,097,675   1,452,053   2,585,397  
Palestinian Road Accident Victims Compensation 
Fund  257,171  200,632  165,998  
Other current liabilities (24) 2,583,739  1,869,248 1,809,541 

51,194,583  43,585,168 42,330,113 
Total liabilities 54,541,660  46,875,153 45,299,068 
Total equity and liabilities 81,801,245  71,537,000 69,488,446 

 

- The above financial statements should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes 1 to 33. 
- The financial statements on page 6 to 45 were authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors on January 

25, 2017 and were signed on its behalf by: 
 

Mr. Mohammad Masrouji  Mr. Alaa Safi  Mr. Ahmad Mushashe 

Chairman of the Board 
 Deputy General Manager for Finance 

and Logistics 
 

General Manager 
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STATEMENT OF INCOME 
(All amounts in US Dollars) 

For the year ended 

Note 
December 
31, 2016 

December 31, 
2015 

     
Restated  
(Note 30) 

Gross premiums (25) 
 

42,810,929 
 

34,588,260 
Change in unearned premiums (25) (2,789,681) (780,734) 

40,021,248 33,807,526 
Gross premiums ceded to reinsurers (25) 

 
(10,667,369) 

 
(5,930,690) 

Reinsurers share of change in unearned premiums (25) 1,830,646 392,661 
(8,836,723) (5,538,029) 

Net Premiums retained 31,184,525 28,269,497 
Gain (Loss) resulting from translating unearned premiums  (25) 

 
104,237 

 
(16,424) 

Net premium revenues before commissions 31,288,762 28,253,073 
 

Commissions income from reinsurers (25) 1,262,067 1,028,952 
Commissions paid (25) )1,514,063(  (1,349,447) 
Net premium revenues after commissions 31,036,766 27,932,578 

 
Claims paid (25) 

 
21,902,262 

 
21,172,461 

Claims ceded to reinsurers (25) )3,160,439(  (1,150,186) 
Net claims paid 18,741,823 20,022,275 
Change in outstanding claims provision (25) 

 
3,626,425 

 
1,004,447 

Change in outstanding claims provision ceded to reinsurers (25) )2,057,270(  (525,060) 
Gain (loss) resulting from translating outstanding provision (25) )170,651(  23,437 
Net claims incurred 

 
20,140,327 20,525,099 

Net insurance profit before investment income and 
general and administrative expenses 10,896,439 7,407,479 

Allocated expenses and income to insurance segments: 
    Investment income allocated to insurance segments (27) 1,138,392 818,015 

General and administrative expenses allocated to insurance 
segments (26) 

 
)6,321,213(  

 
(6,326,282) 

Net insurance profit after investment income and general 
and administrative expenses  5,713,618 1,899,212 

Unallocated expenses and income to insurance segments: 
 

 
  Unallocated investment income (27) 345,235 1,182,483 

Gain (Loss) on disposal of property and equipment  84,215 (5,785) 
Currency exchange losses 

  
)523,220(  

 
(404,716) 

Unallocated general and administrative expenses to insurance 
segments (26) 

 
)476,231(  

 
(476,551) 

Unrealized gain from subsidiaries (6) 269,527 1,269,452 
Recovery  of accounts receivable (12) - 25,000 
Net profit before tax 

 
5,413,144 3,489,095 

Tax expense (23) )1,440,449(  )1,228,763(  
Net profit after tax 3,972,695 2,260,332 

Earnings per share attributable to the Company's 
shareholders (28) 0.3311 0.1884 

 
- The above financial statements should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes 1 to 33. 
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME  
(All amounts in US Dollars)  

For the year ended 

Note 
December 
31, 2016 

December 
 31, 2015 

     
Restated  
(Note 30) 

      
Net profit after tax 3,972,695 2,260,332 
Items of other comprehensive income:  
Items that may be subsequently reclassified to the statement of 

income  
Changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets (9) 125,043 12,137 
Total other comprehensive income for the year 125,043 12,137 
Total comprehensive income for the year 

 
4,097,738 2,272,469 

 
- The above financial statements should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes 1 to 33. 
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY  
(All amounts in US Dollars) 
 

Paid-in 
share 

capital 
Statutory 
reserve 

Voluntary 
reserve 

Fair value 
adjustment 

reserve 
Retained 
earnings 

Total 
equity 

At January 1, 2016 12,000,00 5,338,173  3,000,000  )39,354( 4,363,028  24,661,847  
Net profit after Tax -  

  
-  

  
-  

  
-  

  
3,972,695  

  
3,972,695  

Other comprehensive income -  -  -  125,043  -  125,043  
Total comprehensive income for the year       125,043  3,972,695  4,097,738  
Cash dividends (note 18) -  -  -  -  )1,500,000( )1,500,000( 
Transferred to reserves (note 19) -  

  
397,270  

  
-  

  
-  

  
)397,270( 

  
-  

At December 31, 2016 12,000,00 5,735,443  3,000,000  85,689  6,438,453  27,259,585  

At January 1, 2015 before restatement 12,000,00 5,112,140  3,000,000  )51,491( 4,946,268  25,006,917  
Restatement (note 30) -  -  -  -  )817,539( 

  
)817,539( 

At January 1, 2015 as restated 12,000,00 5,112,140  3,000,000  )51,491( 4,128,729  24,189,378  
Net profit after Tax -  -  -  -  2,260,332  2,260,332  
Other comprehensive income -  -  -  12,137  -  12,137  
Total comprehensive income for the year       12,137  2,260,332  2,272,469  
Cash dividends (note 18) -  

  
-  

  
-  

  
-  

  
)1,800,000( 

  
)1,800,000( 

Transferred to reserves (note 19) -  226,033  -  -  )226,033( -  
At December 31, 2015 12,000,00 5,338,173  3,000,000  )39,354( 4,363,028  24,661,847  

 
- The above financial statements should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes 1 to 33. 
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
(All amounts in US Dollars) 

For the year ended 

Note 
December 31, 

2016 
December 31, 

2015 
Operating activities 
Net profit before tax 

  
5,413,144 

 
3,489,095 

Adjustments: 
Depreciation of property and equipment (5) 367,539 375,909 
 (Gain) Loss from disposal of property and equipment 

  
(84,215) 

 
5,785 

Loss (Gain) on sales of financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss )11،27(  

 
241,022 

 
(1,028,358) 

Loss on sale of available-for-sale financial assets                               )27(  31,757 - 
Provision for employees' indemnity )20(  178,000 382,682 
Unrealized loss from available-for-sale financial assets )27،9(  

 
418,981 

 
- 

Unrealized gain from subsidiaries )6(  (269,527) (1,269,452) 
Change in fair value of financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss )11،27(  (561,309) 420,539 
Recovery on accounts receivable )12(  - (25,000) 
Investments proceeds 1,614,078 (1,392,679) 

7,349,470 958,521 
Changes in operational assets and liabilities: 
Checks under collection 

  
(2,033,845) 

 
(1,439,232) 

Accounts receivable )12(  489,311 940,917 
Insurance and reinsurance companies receivable )14(  (140,374) 556,430 
Reinsurance contracts assets  )13(  (3,887,916) (917,721) 
Other current assets )15(  (36,939) (18,123) 
Insurance contracts liabilities )13(  

 
6,416,106 

 
1,785,181 

Accounts payable )22(  74,472 (82,440) 
Palestinian Road Accident Victims Compensation Fund 

  
56,539 

 
34,634 

Insurance and reinsurance companies payable )21(  640,565 585,616 
Other current liabilities )24(  714,491 59,707 
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss )11(  )3,460,363(  (2,507,364) 
Sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss )11(  

 
4,615,698 

 
7,445,695 

Employees’ indemnity paid )20(  (120,908) (61,652) 
Tax paid )23(  (1,793,923) (1,934,603) 
Net cash flows provided by operating activities 

 
8,882,384 5,405,566 

     Investing activities 
Loans to related parties )8(  

 
- 

 
1,797,461 

Purchase of property and equipment )5(  (607,938) (242,587) 
Disposal of property and equipment )5(  146,299 10,000 
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets )9(  (1,066,305) (248,686) 
Sale of available-for-sale financial assets )9(  79,414 - 
Purchase of investments in subsidiaries  )6(  

 
(149,528) 

 
(31,342) 

Disposal of investments in associates  )8(  - 218,279 
Held to maturity investments )10(  (4,026,566) (1,877,592) 
Investments proceeds (1,614,078) 1,392,679 
Net cash flows (used in) provided by investing activities (7,238,702) 1,018,212 
Financing activities 

    Cash dividends paid (1,438,380) (1,794,299) 
Net cash flows (used in) Financing activities (1,438,380) (1,794,299) 

     Change in cash and cash equivalents 205,302 4,629,479 
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of the year 16,811,100 12,181,621 
Cash and cash equivalents, end of the year (17) 

 
17,016,402 16,811,100 

 
- The above financial statements should be read in conjunction with accompanying notes 1 to 33. 
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NOTE (1) – GENERAL  
National Insurance Company Ltd. (hereinafter “the Company”) was established in 1992 as a public 
shareholding Company registered and incorporated in Ramallah on March 15, 1992 under registration no. 
562600353 with a capital of JD 3,500,000 distributed over 3,500,000 shares of JD 1 par value each. In 2008, 
the Company’s capital currency was converted from Jordanian Dinar to US Dollar. During the period from 
1994 to December 2016, the Company increased its capital to be USD 12,000,000 distributed over 
12,000,000 shares of USD 1 par value each. 
The main objective of the Company is to carry out all types of insurance, reinsurance and investing the 
Company’s capital and its movable and immovable assets. 
The Company operates through its head office in Al-Bireh and its 8 branches located in the West Bank and 
Gaza. In addition, the Company has 13 offices, 29 agents and 199 employees, as of December 31, 2016. 
 
NOTE (2) – SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. 
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. 
 
Basis of Preparation 
The financial statements of National Insurance Company have been prepared in accordance with 
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and IFRS Interpretations Committee (IFRS IC) 
applicable to companies reporting under IFRS. 
The financial statements are presented in US Dollars. 
The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for the available-
for-sale financial assets, investments in associates, investments in subsidiaries, and financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss which were evaluated at fair value. 
 
Those financial statements are separate financial statements for the Company. Consolidated financial 
statements for the Company and its subsidiaries are issued on the basis of consolidating all assets, liabilities, 
and the Company net results with the subsidiaries’ assets, liabilities, and net results after eliminating all 
balances and transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries. 
 
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical 
accounting estimates that affect the amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities. 
All these estimates and judgments affect the income, expenses, and allowances as well as changes in 
available-for-sale financial assets, which appear under equity. It also requires management to exercise its 
judgement in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher 
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial 
statements are disclosed in Note (4). The assumptions and estimates may differ from the actual results 
because of changes in circumstances and situations in the future. 
 
The accounting policies used in the preparation of the financial statements of the Company are consistent 
with those used in the previous year except for the implementation of new standards and amendments on 
existing standards as mentioned below.  
 
(a) New and amended standards and interpretations issued and adopted by the Company for the 
first time and effective for the financial year beginning January 1, 2016 but had no material impact 
on the financial statements of the Company: 

        
- Amendments to IAS (16), ‘Property, plant and equipment’ and IAS (38), ‘Intangible assets’ 

showing the acceptable methods for calculating the depreciation and amortization. 
- Amendments to IAS (34), "interim financial reports" on the disclosures in the interim financial 

statements.   
- Amendments to IAS (19) ‘Employees' benefits’ that require using the currency discount price, by 

which the defined benefits obligations are paid.   
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- Amendments to IAS (1), ‘Presentation of financial statements’, which state some requirements 

for the presentation of the financial statements and disclosures of  accounting policies. 
- Amendments to IFRS (7), ‘Financial instruments:  Disclosures’ which require disclosing the 

ongoing servicing contracts after sale of the financial assets and disclosure of the offsetting 
between the financial assets and liabilities not mentioned in the IAS no. (34) "interim financial 
reports". 

-  Amendments to IFRS (11), "Joint arrangements" that provide specific guidance on how to 
account for the acquisition of a share in joint operation arrangements. 

- Annual amendments  to IFRSs 2012-2014 Cycle. 
        
(b) New standards and interpretations that are not mandatory for the financial year beginning on 
January 1, 2016 but have not been early adopted by the Company: 
       

- IFRS (9), 'Financial instruments', effective on January 1, 2018. This standard addresses the 
classification, measurement and de-recognition of financial assets and financial liabilities, and 
introduces new rules for hedge accounting. In addition, the standard introduced a new 
impairment model. The standard must be applied for financial years beginning on or after 
January 1, 2018. 

- IFRS (15), ‘Revenue from contracts with customers’ effective from January 1, 2018. This 
standard will replace IAS (18) which covers contracts for goods and services and IAS (11) which 
covers construction contracts. Based on the new standard, revenue is recognized when control of 
a good or service  is transferred to a customer – thus, the notion of control replaces the existing 
notion of return and risks. 

- IFRS (16), ‘Leases’, effective on or after 1 January 2019. This standard will replace IAS (17)  
‘Leases’,  The standard requires the lessor to record the future lease liabilities of all leases 
including "the right to use the asset".  

- Amendments to IAS (12) ‘Income Taxes’, effective from 1 January 2017. These standards show 
the adjustment, measurement and accounting of the deferred tax assets. 

- Amendments to IAS (7), ‘Statement of cash flows’, effective from 1 January 2017.  These 
amendments require additional disclosures about changes in the liabilities resulted from the 
financing activities. 

 

Revenue recognition 
Insurance contracts 
Premiums are taken into income over the terms of the policies to which they relate on a pro-rata basis. 
Unearned premiums represent the portion of premiums written relating to the unexpired period of coverage. 
Unearned premiums as of the financial statements date are classified as insurance contracts liabilities. 
Claims, comprising amounts payable to policyholders and third parties and related loss adjustment expenses, 
net of salvage and other recoveries, are charged to the statement of income as incurred. 
 

Insurance fee income 
Insurance fee income and other costs incurred to acquire a new or renewed insurance contract is recognized 
in the statement of income in the year of occurrence. 
 

Interest income 
Revenue is recognized as interest accrues using the effective interest method, under which the rate used 
exactly discount estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to the net 
carrying amount of the financial asset. 
 

Investments income and gains from securities 
Gains or losses on sale of investments in securities are recognized at the date of sale. Dividend income is 
recognized when the right to receive the dividends is established. 
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Investment income 
The investment income is proportionally allocated to each insurance segment based on gross insurance 
contract premium as follows: 
- 10% is allocated to investment income in the statement of income. 
- 90% is allocated to each insurance segment proportionally based on gross insurance contracts premium. 
 
Expenses recognition 
Commissions paid to intermediaries and other direct costs incurred in relation to the acquisition and renewals 
of insurance contracts are amortised in the statement of income when incurred. All other expenses are 
recognized when incurred based on the accrual basis of accounting. 
 
Insurance claims 
Claims comprise amounts paid during the year to policyholders whether related to current or prior years. 
Insurance claims represent claims paid during the year and change in the outstanding claims provision. 
 
Gross outstanding claims comprise the highest gross estimate cost of claims incurred but not settled at the 
reporting date. Claims also comprise of provision for claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) and it is 
calculated based on best data available as of the financial statements date. 
 
General and administrative expenses 
The general and administrative expense is proportionally allocated to each insurance segment based on gross 
insurance contracts premium as follows: 
- 7% is allocated to statement of income under unallocated general and administrative expenses item. 
- 93% is allocated to each insurance segment proportionally based on gross insurance contracts premium. 
With respect to the health insurance segment, an amount equivalent to 8% of the allocated expenses is 
redistributed to all the other insurance segments. This 8% represents the paid administrative fees to the third 
party administration Company (Nat-Health) that manages the Company’s health and medical claims. 
 
Financial assets 
 

Classification 
The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss, 
loans and receivables, available- for- sale and held to maturity investments. The classification depends on the 
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its 
financial assets at initial recognition. 
 
Available-for-sale financial assets 
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are either designated in this 
category or not classified in any of the other categories. Unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in 
the fair value of financial assets classified as available- for- sale are recognized in equity. Fair value is 
determined by quoted prices in an active market. For available- for- sale financial assets that do not have an 
active market, the Company calculates their fair value using the latest audited financial statements of these 
financial assets. 
 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 
A financial asset is classified into the “financial assets at fair value through profit or loss” category if 
acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term, if it forms part of a portfolio of financial 
assets in which there is evidence of short term profit-taking, or if so designated by management. Realised 
and recognized gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss’ category are included in the statement of income in the period in which they arise. Fair 
value is determined by quoted prices in an active market.  
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Held to maturity investments 
Held to maturity investments are the financial assets which the Company's management intends according to 
its business model to hold for the purpose of collecting the contractual cash flows which comprise the sole 
payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding balance. 
Financial assets are recorded at cost upon purchase plus acquisition expenses. Moreover, the issue premium \ 
discount is amortized using the effective interest rate method, and recorded to interest account. Provisions 
associated with the decline in value of these investments leading to the inability to recover the investment or 
parts thereof are deducted. Any impairment is registered in the statement of income and should be presented 
subsequently at amortized cost less any impairment losses. 
 
The amount of the impairment loss recognized is the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the 
present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the original effective interest rate. 
 
It is not allowed to reclassify any financial assets from / to this category except for certain cases specified at 
the International Financial Reporting Standards (and in the case of selling those assets before its maturity 
date, the results should be recorded in a separate account in the statement of income, disclosures should be 
made in accordance to the requirements of International Financial Reporting Standards). 
 
Loans and receivables 
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not 
quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than 12 months 
after the end of the reporting period. These are classified as non-current assets. The Company’s loans and 
receivables comprise “trade and other receivables” and “cash and cash equivalents” in the statement of 
financial position. 
 
Impairment of financial assets 
(a) Assets carried at amortised cost 
The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is objective evidence that a financial 
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and 
impairment losses are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more 
events that occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has 
an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be 
reliably estimated. 
 

Evidence of impairment may include indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing 
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that 
they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is a 
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions 
that correlate with defaults. 
For loans and receivables category, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s 
carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have 
not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.  
 

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the statement of 
income. If a loan or held-to-maturity investments has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring 
any impairment loss is the current effective interest rate determined under the contract. As a practical 
expedient, the Company may measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an 
observable market price. 
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If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related 
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised (such as an improvement in the 
debtor’s credit rating), the reversal of the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the 
statement of income. 
 

(b) Assets classified as available- for- sale The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period 
whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. For debt 
securities, the Company uses the criteria referred to in (a) above. In the case of equity investments classified 
as available- for- sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is also 
evidence that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the 
cumulative loss – measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any 
impairment loss on that financial asset previously recognised in profit or loss– is removed from equity and 
recognised in the statement of income. Impairment losses recognised in the statement of income on equity 
instruments are not reversed through the statement of income. If, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a 
debt instrument classified as available- for- sale increases and the increase can be objectively related to an 
event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed 
through the statement of income. 
 
Recognition and measurement 
Regular purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade-date – the date on which the 
Company commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus 
transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried 
at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in 
the statement of income. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the 
investments have expired or have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks 
and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit 
or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently carried at amortised 
cost using the effective interest method.  
 
Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss’ category are presented in the statement of income in the period in which they arise. Dividend income 
from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the statement of income as part of 
investment income when the Company’s right to receive payments is established. Changes in the fair value 
of monetary and non-monetary securities classified as available- for- sale are recognised in other 
comprehensive income. 
 
When securities classified as available- for- sale are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value adjustments 
recognised in equity are included in the statement of income as ‘Gains and losses from investment 
securities’. 
 
Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in the 
statement of income as part of other income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity instruments are 
recognised in the statement of income as part of investment income when the Company’s right to receive 
payments is established. 
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Property and equipment 
Property and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment in value. 
Depreciation is calculated on a straight line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets (except for 
land) as follows: 

Asset category  Useful lives 
Furniture and equipment  5-17 
Motor vehicles  6-10 
Buildings  50 
Decorations  10 
Computer software  5 

 
The carrying values of property and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or changes in 
circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable. If any such indication exists and where the 
carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amount, the assets are written down to their recoverable 
amount, being the higher of their fair value less cost to sell and their value in use. 
 
Expenditure incurred to replace a component of an item of property and equipment that is accounted for 
separately is capitalized and the carrying amount of the component replaced is written off. Other subsequent 
expenditures are capitalized only when they increase future economic benefits of the related item of property 
and equipment. All other expenditures are recognized in the statement of income as the expense is incurred. 
 
Investment in subsidiaries 
The Company values its investment in subsidiaries at fair value through profit or loss as defined by IAS 39. 
Dividends received from subsidiary are recognized in the statement of income. Any gains or losses arising 
from the change in fair value are recognized in the statement of income when the change in fair value has 
occurred. 
 
Investment in associates 
The Company values its investment in associates at fair value through profit or loss as defined by IAS 39. 
Dividends received from associates are recognized in the income statement. Any gains or losses arising from 
the change in fair value are recognized in the income statement when the change in fair value has occurred. 
Associated companies are companies on which the Company exercises significant influence. The reporting 
dates of the Company and its associated companies are identical. 
 
Reinsurance 
The Company cedes insurance risk in the normal course of business by making treaties and agreements with 
the reinsurers. Reinsurance contracts assets represent balances due from reinsurance companies. Recoverable 
amounts are calculated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision and are in accordance 
with the reinsurance contract and the reinsurer share from the unearned premiums. 
 

An impairment review of reinsurance contracts assets is performed at each reporting date or when an 
indication of impairment arises during the reporting year. Impairment occurs when objective evidence 
indicates that the Company may not recover outstanding amounts under the terms of the contract and when 
the impact on the amounts that the Company will receive from the reinsurer can be measured reliably. The 
impairment loss is recorded in the statement of income. 
 

Ceded reinsurance arrangements do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders. 
 

Premiums and claims are presented on a gross basis for both retained and ceded insurance obligations. 
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Insurance receivables 
Insurance receivables are recognised when due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value of the 
consideration received or receivable. The carrying value of insurance receivables is reviewed for impairment 
when events or circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable, with the impairment 
loss recorded in the statement of income. Bad debts are written off when they are identified. 
 
Cash and cash equivalents 
For the purpose of preparing the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash on hand, 
Company's balances at banks, and short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less after 
deducting any restricted deposits. 
 
Insurance contracts liabilities 
Insurance contracts liabilities are recognized when contracts are signed and premiums are charged. The 
reserve for unearned premiums represents the portion of premiums written relating to the unexpired period of 
coverage and recorded as liabilities and computed based on the number of days remaining in insurance 
coverage subsequent to the date of financial statements. Outstanding claims comprise the estimated amounts 
payable to insurance contract holders, third parties, and related loss adjustment expenses, net of salvage and 
other recoveries, whether claims reported to the Company or those not reported at the statement of financial 
position date. 
 

Unsettled reported claims are computed at the statement of financial position date on an individual basis for 
each case based on independent loss adjusters, attorneys and the Company’s prior experience. 
 

Estimates of claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) is recorded based on prior experience and assessment 
of amount required to settle unreported accidents at the statement of financial position date, and based on 
actuarial reports issued by independent actuary.  
 
Liability adequacy test 
At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether its recognised insurance liabilities are adequate using 
current estimates of future cash flows under its insurance contracts. If that assessment shows that the 
carrying amount of its insurance liabilities is inadequate in the light of estimated future cash flows, the entire 
deficiency is immediately recognised in the statement of income. 
 
Accounts payable and accrual 
Liabilities are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether billed 
by the supplier or not. 
 
Offsetting financial instruments 
Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the statement of financial position 
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on 
a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. 
 
Tax provisions 
The Company provides for income tax in accordance with Income Tax Law and IAS (12) which requires 
recognizing the temporary differences, at the statement of financial position date, as deferred taxes. Income 
tax expense represents the accrued income tax which is calculated based on the Company’s taxable income. 
Taxable income may differ from accounting income as the later includes non-taxable revenues or non-
deductible expenses. Such income or expense might be taxable or deductible in the following years. Taxes 
are computed based on the tax percentage of the applicable laws and regulations. 
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Segment reporting 
A business segment consists of assets and operations providing goods or services that are exposed to risks 
and returns different from those of other business segments. 
A geographic segment relates to goods or services within an economic environment exposed to risks and 
returns different from those of other segments working in other economic environments. 
 
Provision for end of service benefits  
Benefits payable to the employees at the end of their services are provided for in accordance with the 
guidelines set by the Palestinian labour law number 7 for the year 2000. 
 
Provident fund 
The Company contributes 5% of employees' salaries to a saving fund in the name of the employees in the 
first five years of the employees' subscription in the fund after which the Company increases its contribution 
to 7.5%. This contribution is charged to the statement of income. 
 
Foreign currency translation  
(a) Functional and presentation currency 
Items included in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Company operates which is the US Dollar (USD).The financial statements are 
presented in USD, which is the Company’s presentation currency. 

 
(b) Transactions and balances 
Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing 
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses 
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange rates of 
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the statement of income. 
 
Following are the major currencies that the Company transacts with and their exchange rates against USD as 
of the date of the financial statements: 

Against the USD 

 
2016 

 
2015 

New Israeli Shekels 0.2597 0.2558 
Jordanian Dinar 1.4104 1.4092 
European Euro 1.0458 

 
1.0931 

Swiss Franc 1.0257 
 

1.0113 
Chinese Yuan Renminbi 0.1439 0.1541 
Saudi Riyal 0.2665 

 
0.2665 

Qatari Riyal 0.2746 
 

0.2746 
United Arab Emirates Dirham 0.2723 

 
0.2722 

Egyptian Pound 0.0533 
 

0.1277 
 
Earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the profit attributable to equity holders of the Company 
by the weighted average number of outstanding shares. 
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NOTE (3) Financial risk management 
 
Financial risk factors 
The Company manages various risks through a strategy that addresses those risks and the procedures to 
mitigate them by applying reporting systems aiming to review and adopt appropriate risk mitigating 
procedures. In addition, the business units are responsible for identifying risks associated with their 
operations and to apply and monitor appropriate control procedures. The overall responsibility of managing 
and monitoring risks rests with the Board of Directors. 
 
Risk measurement and reporting systems 
Managing risks is established by monitoring limits for each type of risk. The limits reflect the Company’s 
strategy and market condition. The information is gathered from each business unit and analysed to identify 
expected risk. Information is presented and analysed to the Board of Directors. 
The Company is exposed to insurance risks and financial risks such as market, liquidity and credit risks. 
Following is a summary of the Company’s risks and the mitigating procedures applied: 
 
Insurance risk 
The principal risk the Company faces under insurance contracts is that the actual claims and benefit 
payments or the timing thereof, differ from expectations. This is influenced by the frequency of claims, 
severity of claims, actual benefits paid and subsequent development of long-term claims. Therefore, the 
objective of the Company is to ensure that sufficient reserves are available to cover these claims. 
The above risk exposure is mitigated by diversification across a large portfolio of insurance contracts. In 
addition, the variability of risks is also improved by careful selection and implementation of underwriting 
strategy guidelines, as well as the use of reinsurance arrangements. 
The Company underwrites motor, fire, workmen, third party personal liability, engineering, marine, medical, 
life insurance and other general accidents. Those are considered short-term insurance contracts as claims are 
normally settled within one year from the insured accident date, and that helps to mitigate insurance risk. 
Risks are accepted based on an evaluation of pricing and prior underwriting experience in accordance with 
underwriting guidelines that have been laid out for each line of business. Underwriting guidelines are 
constantly reviewed and updated to take into account market developments, performance and opportunities. 
Accumulation limits are set to control exposures to natural hazards and catastrophes. Various underwriting 
and approval limits are specified for accepting risks.  
 
The reinsurance strategy of the Company is designed to protect exposures to individual and event risks based 
on current risk exposures through cost effective reinsurance arrangements. The recoverable amounts from 
reinsurers are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims provision and are in accordance 
with the reinsurance contracts. 
 
Even though the Company has reinsurance arrangements, the direct obligation to its policy holders is shown 
as a liability and thus to the extent the reinsurer is not able to meet its obligations under the reinsurance 
arrangement, a credit exposure exists. The management ensures that the Company’s reinsurance placement is 
diversified within a range of reinsurers and is not concentrated or dependent on any single reinsurer.  
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Frequency and severity of claims 
The frequency and severity of claims can be determined after consideration of several factors as follows: 
 
• Past experience of the claims; 
• Economic level; 
• Laws and regulations; and 
• Public awareness 
 
Sources of uncertainty in the estimation of future claim payments 
Claims on general insurance contracts are payable on a claims-occurrence basis. The Company is liable for 
all insured events that occurred during the term of the contract, even if the loss is discovered after the end of 
the contract term. As a result, a larger element of the claims provision relates to incurred but not reported 
claims (IBNR) which are settled over a short to medium term period. 
 
There are several variables that affect the amount and timing of cash flows from these contracts. These 
mainly relate to the inherent risks of the business activities carried out by individual contract holders and the 
risk of the management procedures adopted. The compensation paid on these contracts is the monetary 
awards granted for the loss suffered by the policy holders or third parties (for third party liability covers). 
 
The estimated cost of claims includes direct expenses to be incurred in settling claims, net of the expected 
subrogation values and other recoveries. The Company takes all reasonable steps to ensure that it has 
appropriate information regarding its claims exposures. However, given the uncertainty in establishing 
claims provisions, it is likely that the final outcome will prove to be different from the original liability 
established. The liability for these contracts comprise a provision for IBNR, a provision for reported claims 
not yet paid and a provision for unexpired risks as at the statement of financial position date. 
 
In calculating the estimated cost of unpaid claims (both reported and not), the Company’s estimation 
techniques are a combination of loss-ratio-based estimates (where the loss ratio is defined as the ratio 
between the ultimate cost of insurance claims and insurance premiums earned in a particular financial year in 
relation to such claims) and an estimate based upon actual claims experience using predetermined formula 
where greater weight is given to actual claims experience as time passes. An actuarial valuation is done every 
subsequent year to ensure the adequacy of the reserves. 
 
Claims development 
The Company maintains strong reserves in respect of its insurance business in order to protect against 
adverse future claims experience and developments. The uncertainties about the amount and timing of claim 
payments are generally resolved within one year. 
 
Process used to decide on assumptions 
The risks associated with the insurance contracts are complex and subject to a number of variables that 
complicate quantitative sensitivity analysis. The exposure of the Company to claims associated with general 
insurance is material. This exposure is concentrated in Palestine where significant transactions take place.  
 
The Company uses assumptions based on a mixture of internal and actuarial reports to measure its general 
insurance related claims liabilities. Internal data is derived mostly from the Company’s monthly claims 
reports and screening of the actual insurance contracts carried out at year-end to derive data for the contracts 
held.  
 
The Company has reviewed the individual contracts and their actual exposure to claims. This information is 
used to develop scenarios related to the latency of claims that are used for the projections of the ultimate 
number of claims.   
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Reinsurance risk 
In order to minimize financial exposure arising from large claims, the Company, in the normal course of 
business, enters into agreements with other parties for reinsurance purposes. Such reinsurance arrangements 
provide for greater diversification of business, allow management to control exposure to potential losses 
arising from large risks, and provide additional capacity for growth. A significant portion of the reinsurance 
is accomplished by treaty, facultative and excess of–loss reinsurance contracts. Reinsurance ceded contracts 
do not relieve the Company from its obligations to policyholders and as a result the Company remains liable 
for the portion of outstanding claims reinsured to the extent that the reinsurer fails to meet the obligations 
under the reinsurance agreements. To minimize its exposure to significant losses from reinsurer insolvencies, 
the Company evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers and monitors concentrations of credit risk.  
 

Insurance risks sensitivity  
The following schedule shows the effect of the reasonable and possible change in the underwriting premium 
pricing on the net insurance revenue with all other variables held constant. The effect of the decline of the 
underwriting premium pricing is equal and opposite of the increase shown below: 
 

  
2016 

 
2015 

Insurance segment Change 

Gross 
premium 
and fees 
earned 

 

Effect on 
net 

insurance 
revenue 

 

Gross 
premium 
and fees 
earned 

 

Effect on 
net 

insurance 
revenue 

Motors 10% 
 

1,993,052  1,719,808 
 

1,583,463  1,410,077 
Fire 10% 352,750  124,621 302,529  112,078 
Workmen 10% 362,053  314,760 283,465  274,937 
Third party-Personal liability 10% 90,051  55,530 87,651  52,468 
Engineering 10% 112,040  63,613 93,745  49,027 
Marine 10% 

 
40,168  24,945 

 
53,676  29,859 

Medical 10% 1,083,878  684,498 779,085  740,753 
Life 10% 5,861  7,815 141,474  54,835 
Other general insurance 10% 241,240  108,087 133,738  69,224 

  
4,281,093  3,103,677 

 
3,458,826  2,793,258 

The following schedule shows the effect of the reasonable and possible change in the claims cost on the net 
claims incurred with all other variables held constant. The effect of the decline of the claims cost is equal and 
opposite of the increase shown below: 

 
2016 2015 

Insurance segment Change 

Claims 
Paid for the 

year 

Effect on 
net claims 
incurred 

Claims 
Paid for the 

year 

Effect on 
net claims 
incurred 

Motors 10% 
 

)1,064,811(  1,209,967)( )878,400(  )845,906( 
Fire 10% 

 
)36,098(  )3,856( )50,675(  )10,751( 

Workmen 10% 
 

189,147)(  )186,596( 
 

141,720)(  )189,600( 
Third party-Personal liability 10% 

 
12,298)(  9,625)( 9,644)(  )14,864( 

Engineering 10% 
 

39,435)(  5,321)( 
 

35,717)(  )8,572( 
Marine 10%  32,057)(  8,752)( 

 
4,941)(  )2,271( 

Medical 10%  673,358)(  )556,589( )959,438(  )967,719( 
Life 10% 

 
470)(  3,173 28,539)(  )9,322( 

Other general insurance 10%  )142,552(  (36,500) 8,172)(  3,505)( 

 
)2,190,226(  (2,014,033) )2,117,246(  )2,052,510( 
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Concentration of insurance risks 
The table below sets out the concentration of insurance contract liabilities by type of insurance segment: 
 

2016 2015 

Insurance segment 

Insurance 
contracts 
liabilities   

Reinsured 
contracts Net 

Insurance 
contracts 
liabilities   

Reinsured 
contracts Net 

Motors 24,603,183  480,760  24,122,423 21,857,622  274,650  21,582,972 
Fire 2,123,397  1,928,632  194,765 1,859,524  1,656,107  203,417 
Workmen 5,230,400  227,942  5,002,458 4,837,716  171,370  4,666,346 
Third party-Personal 
liability 1,258,706  423,368  835,338 1,195,931  360,480  835,451 
Engineering 707,113  561,378  145,735 753,593  596,513  157,080 
Marine 195,603  158,160  37,443 231,484  202,684  28,800 
Medical 6,036,268  3,198,122  2,838,146 3,300,144  68,972  3,231,172 
Life 109,124  74,066  35,058 370,914  267,026  103,888 
Other general 
insurance 1,195,210  860,240  334,970 635,970  426,950  209,020 

41,459,004  7,912,668  33,546,336 35,042,898  4,024,752  31,018,146 
 

Regulatory framework risk 
Regulators are primarily interested in protecting the rights of the policyholders and monitor them closely to 
ensure that the Company is satisfactorily managing affairs for their benefit. At the same time, the regulators 
are also interested in ensuring that the Company maintains an appropriate solvency position to meet 
unforeseen liabilities. Such regulations not only prescribe approval and monitoring of activities, but also 
impose certain restrictive provisions (e.g. Solvency Margin) to minimize the risk of default and insolvency 
on the part of the insurance companies to meet unforeseen liabilities as these arise. 
 

Financial risk 
The Company follows financial policies in managing risks as a part of certain strategies. Management 
manages and controls risks and ensures strategic and optimal allocation of assets and liabilities. These risks 
include market risk (interest rate risk, equity price risk and foreign currency risk), liquidity risk and credit 
risk. 
 

a. Market risk 
Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because 
of changes in market prices. Market risk comprises three types of risk: interest rate risk, equity price risk and 
currency risk.  
 

- Interest rate risk 
The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in interest rates relates primarily to interest bearing assets 
and liabilities. The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the Company’s statement of income for 
the year ended December 31, 2016 to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all other variables 
held constant, this risk is computed for financial assets and liabilities with changing interest rates as of 
December 31, 2016 and 2015. The effect of the decrease in interest rates is expected to be equal and opposite 
to the effect of the increase shown below: 

Change in 
interest rate 

Effect on net 
profit before tax 

Year   USD 
2016  10%  72,338 
2015  10%  72,418 
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- Equity price risk 
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of the changes in equity prices, with all other variables held 
constant. The effect of decreases in equity prices is expected to be equal and opposite to the effect of the 
increase shown below: 

Change in equity 
price  Effect on equity 

Effect on 
statement of 

income 
2016  USD USD 
Listed shares in Palestine 

Securities Exchange 10%  34,046  320,301 
Listed shares in foreign markets 10%  -  921,126 

 

Change in equity 
price  Effect on equity 

Effect on 
statement of 

income 
2015  USD USD 
Listed shares in Palestine 

Securities Exchange 10%  45,163  263,567 
Listed shares in foreign markets 10%  -  1,061,364 

  

- Foreign Currency Risk 
The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in the USD exchange rate, 
with all other variables held constant, on the Company’s net profit before tax. The effect of the increase in 
exchange rates is expected to be equal and opposite to the effect of the decrease shown below: 
 

2016 
Increase in currency 

rate to USD 
Effect on net profit 

before tax 
USD 

New Israeli Shekels 10%  1,103,241 
Chinese Yuan Renminbi 10%  1,503 
EURO 10%  13,848 
United Arab Dirhams 10%  194 
Qatari Riyal 10%  31 
Egyptian Pound 10%  419 

 

2015 
Increase in currency 

rate to USD 
Effect on net profit 

before tax 

 
USD 

New Israeli Shekels 10% 
 995,582 

Chinese Yuan Renminbi 10% 
 1,596 

EURO 10% 
 51,402 

United Arab Dirhams 10% 
 209 

Qatari Riyal 10% 
 171 

Egyptian Pound 10% 
 540 
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b. Liquidity risk 
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its commitments associated with 
insurance contracts and financial liabilities as they fall due. To mitigate this risk, management diversifies 
financing resources and manages assets and liabilities and keeps enough cash and cash equivalents. Liquidity 
requirements are monitored on a monthly basis and management ensures that sufficient liquid funds from 
cash and cash equivalents are available to meet any commitments as they arise. The Company’s deposits 
held at banks are mostly short term in nature with maturity not more than three months. 
 
The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial instruments based on 
contractual undiscounted payments; the Company monitors the maturity dates of these instruments in order 
to ensure that the Company is liquid. 
 

 
Subject to liquidity risk 

  
2016 Within one year 

More than 
one year 

Without 
maturity Total 

Investment in subsidiaries -  -  13,194,520  13,194,520 
Available-for-sale financial 

assets -  -  2,321,896  2,321,896 
Financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss 1,936,301  3,903,941  6,574,023  12,414,265 
Held to maturity investments -  5,904,158  -  5,904,158 
Accounts receivable 6,739,652  -  -  6,739,652 
Reinsurance contracts assets 7,912,668  -  -  7,912,668 
Insurance and reinsurance 
companies receivable 1,210,352  -  -  1,210,352 
Other current assets 23,884  -  -  23,884 
Checks under collection 8,712,830  99,219  -  8,812,049 
Deposit at banks 15,873,145  -  -  15,873,145 
Cash and cash equivalents 1,643,257  -  -  1,643,257 
Total financial assets 44,052,089  9,907,318  22,090,439  76,049,846 
Insurance contracts liabilities 41,459,004  -  -  41,459,004 
Insurance and reinsurance 
companies payable 2,635,463  -  -  2,635,463 
Accounts payable 3,161,531  -  -  3,161,531 
Other current liabilities 1,769,897  -  -  1,769,897 
Total financial liabilities 49,025,895  -  -  49,025,895 
Maturity gap )4,973,806(   9,907,318  22,090,439  27,023,951 
Cumulative gap )4,973,806(   4,933,512  27,023,951   
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Subject to liquidity risk 

  
2015 Within one year 

More than 
one year 

Without 
maturity Total 

Investment in subsidiaries -  -  12,775,465  12,775,465 
Available-for-sale financial 

assets 
- 

 
- 

 
1,660,700 

 
1,660,700 

Financial assets at fair value 
through profit or loss 

1,848,901 
 

6,890,681 
 

4,509,731 
 

13,249,313 

Held to maturity investments -  1,877,592  -  1,877,592 
Accounts receivable 7,228,963  -  -  7,228,963 
Reinsurance contracts assets 4,024,752  -  -  4,024,752 
Insurance and reinsurance 
companies receivable 

1,069,978 
 

- 
 

- 
 

1,069,978 

Other current assets 62,214  -  -  62,214 
Checks under collection 6,619,336  158,868  -  6,778,204 
Deposit at banks 16,631,922  -  -  16,631,922 
Cash and cash equivalents 679,178  -  -  679,178 
Total financial assets 38,165,244  8,927,141  18,945,896  66,038,281 
Insurance contracts liabilities 35,042,898  -  -  35,042,898 
Insurance and reinsurance 
companies payable 

1,994,898 
 

- 
 

- 
 

1,994,898 

Accounts payable 3,025,439  -  -  3,025,439 
Other current liabilities 1,244,335  -  -  1,244,335 
Total financial liabilities 41,307,570  -  -  41,307,570 
Maturity gap )3,142,326(   8,927,141  18,945,896  24,730,711 
Cumulative gap )3,142,326(   5,784,815  24,730,711   

 

c. Credit risk 
Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause the 
other party to incur a financial loss. For all categories of financial assets held by the Company, the maximum 
exposure to credit risk is the carrying value as disclosed in the statement of financial position. 
 

The following table details the financial assets held with the Company: 
Financial asset 2016 2015 Collateral held Credit quality 

Cash and cash equivalents 
including deposits 

 
17,516,402 

 
17,311,100 

 
- 

 
High 

Checks under collection due 
within one year 

 
8,712,830 

 
6,619,336 

 
- 

 
High 

Accounts receivable 6,739,652 7,228,963 - High 

Insurance and reinsurance 
companies receivable 1,210,352 1,069,978 

Withholdings 25% 
and 40% of 
premiums High 

Held to maturity investments  5,904,158  1,877,592    High 
Reinsurance contracts assets 7,912,668 4,024,752 - High 
Financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss 
 

12,414,265 
 

13,249,313 
 

- 
 

High 
Available- for- sale financial 

assets   2,321,896  1,660,700  -  High 
Investment in subsidiaries  13,194,520  12,775,465  -  Moderate 
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The Company manages credit risk for the above shown assets in the following manner: 
 
 Cash and cash equivalents including deposits at banks and financial institutions 

The Company maintains its deposits for short and medium maturities in highly reputable local and 
international banks with different currencies. 
 

 Checks under collection and accounts receivable 
The Company deals with highly reputable institutions and individuals whose credit risk is low by 
maintaining a black list of customers who represent a possible credit risk. Checks collected from 
customers are deposited in reputable banks. Further, the Company uses its legal department to follow 
up on receivables from customers. 

 
 Reinsurance companies receivable and reinsurance contracts assets 

The Company reinsures its policies, with top rated re-insurance companies to help the Company 
compensate losses of insurance contracts.The Company remains committed to compensate losses on 
insurance contracts whether the reinsurers were able or not able to fulfill their commitments. To 
ensure reinsurers commitments are fulfilled, The Company withholds 40% of the reinsured 
premiums on all kinds of insurances except for marine, where the withholding percentage is 25% for 
a period of one year. 
 

 Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, available- for- sale and Held to maturity 
investments 
The Company invests in top rated debt securities with high credit ratings not less than (BBB-) to 
ensure high returns and collectability. These investments include popular and regional investees. 

 
Capital management 
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital 
ratios in order to support its business and maximize shareholders’ value. 
 
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in business 
conditions. No changes were made on the objectives, policies or processes during the year. Capital structure 
includes paid-in share capital, retained earnings, statutory and voluntary reserves, and fair value adjustment 
reserve amounting to USD 27,259,585 and USD 24,661,847 as of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 
2015, respectively. 
 
The Company’s operation is subject to the regulations and requirements of Insurance General Directorate in 
Palestine. These regulations and requirements set approval procedures and control over insurance companies 
and also set requirements for capital adequacy and solvency limits for the purpose of mitigating insolvency 
risks. 
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Fair value of financial instruments 
 
The table below presents a comparison between the book values and the fair values of the financial 
instruments as classified on December 31, 2016 and 2015: 
 

 
The fair value of the financial assets and liabilities are included at the amount at which the instrument could 
be exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. 
 

- The fair values of accounts receivable, other financial assets, cash and cash equivalents, checks 
under collection,  reinsurance contracts assets, insurance and reinsurance companies receivable, 
accounts payable, insurance and reinsurance companies payable, insurance contracts liabilities, and 
other financial liabilities largely approximate their carrying amounts due to the short-term maturities 
of these instruments. 

 

- The fair values of investment in quoted available-for-sale financial assets and financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss were based on their price quotations at the reporting date. 

 

- Unquoted available-for-sale financial assets are stated at cost as their fair values cannot be reliably 
determined. 

 
Fair value hierarchy 
The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of its financial 
instruments: 
 

 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1). 
 Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 

either directly (that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2). 
 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (that is, unobservable 

inputs) (Level 3). 
  

 
Book value 

 
Fair value 

Financial Assets 2016  2015  2016  2015 
Investment in subsidiaries 13,194,520 

 
12,775,465 

 
13,194,520 

 
12,775,465 

Available-for-sale financial assets 2,321,896  1,660,700  2,321,896  1,660,700 
Financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss 12,414,265 

 
13,249,313 

 
12,414,265 

 
13,249,313 

Held to maturity investments 5,904,158  1,877,592  5,904,158  1,877,592 
Accounts receivable 6,739,652 

 
7,228,963 

 
6,739,652 

 
7,228,963 

Reinsurance contracts assets 7,912,668 4,024,752 7,912,668 4,024,752 
Insurance and reinsurance companies 

receivable 1,210,352 1,069,978 1,210,352 1,069,978 
Other current assets 23,884 

 
62,214 

 
23,884 

 
62,214 

Checks under collection 8,812,049 6,778,204 8,812,049 6,778,204 
Deposits at banks 15,873,145 16,631,922 15,873,145 16,631,922 
Cash and Cash equivalents 1,643,257 679,178 1,643,257 679,178 

 
76,049,846 66,038,281 76,049,846 66,038,281 

Financial Liabilities     
Insurance contracts liabilities 41,459,004 

 
35,042,898 

 
41,459,004 

 
35,042,898 

Insurance and reinsurance companies payable 2,635,463 
 

1,994,898 
 

2,635,463 
 

1,994,898 
Accounts payable 3,161,531 3,025,439 3,161,531 3,025,439 
Other current liabilities 1,769,897 

 
1,043,703 

 
1,769,897 

 
1,043,703 

49,025,895 41,106,938 49,025,895 41,106,938 
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2016 Total  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 
Investment in subsidiaries 
Quoted  11,902,665  11,902,665  -  - 
Un-quoted 1,291,855  -  -  1,291,855 

13,194,520  11,902,665  -  1,291,855 
Available-for-sale financial 
assets 
Quoted  

 
437,655  437,655  -  - 

Un-quoted 1,884,241  -  -  1,884,241 
2,321,896  437,655  -  1,884,241 

Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss        
Investments in local shares 3,203,007  3,203,007  -  - 
Investments in foreign 
shares 3,371,016  3,371,016  -  - 
Foreign bonds 

 
5,840,242  5,840,242  -  - 

  
12,414,265  12,414,265  -  - 

  ,930,68127   24,754,585  -  3,176,096 

 
2015 

 
Total  Level 1  Level 2  Level 3 

Investment in subsidiaries 
Quoted  11,549,665  11,549,665  -  - 
Un-quoted 

 
1,225,800  -  -  1,225,800 

12,775,465  11,549,665  -  1,225,800 
Available-for-sale financial 
assets 

        Quoted  423,783  423,783  -  - 
Un-quoted 1,236,917  -  -  1,236,917 

  
1,660,700  423,783  -  1,236,917 

Financial assets at fair 
value through profit or loss        
Investments in local shares 2,635,673  2,635,673  -  - 
Investments in foreign 
shares 

 
1,874,058  1,874,058  -  - 

Foreign bonds 8,739,582  8,739,582  -  - 
13,249,313  13,249,313  -  - 

  27,685,478  25,222,761  -  2,462,717 

 
During the year, there was no transfer for financial instruments between level 1, level 2 or level 3. 
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NOTE (4) – CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGMENTS  
 

Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, 
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. 
 
Management believes that estimates are reasonable and are as follows: 
 

Fair value of financial instruments 
Where the fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the statement of financial position 
cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using valuation techniques including the 
discounted cash flows model. 
The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, 
a degree of judgment is required in establishing fair values. The judgments include considerations of inputs 
such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the 
reported fair value of financial instruments. 
 

Impairment of investments  
The Company treats available-for-sale financial assets as impaired when there has been a significant or 
prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or where other objective evidence of impairment exists. 
 

Impairment of financial assets stated at cost 
Management reviews, on a regular basis, the financial assets that are stated at cost to estimate impairments, if 
any. Impairment losses are reflected in the statement of income. 
 

Useful lives of tangible assets 
The Company’s management reviews, on a regular basis, the useful lives of the tangible assets in order to 
assess the depreciation for the year based on the assets’ condition, useful life and future economic benefits. 
Any impairment is recognized in the statement of income.  
 

Provision for doubtful debts 
The Company provides services to a broad base of clients using certain credit terms. Estimates, based on past 
experience, are used in determining the level of debts that the Company believes will be collected. 
 

Provision of outstanding claims  
Considerable judgment by management is required in the estimation of amounts due to insurance contract 
holders and third parties arising from claims made under insurance contracts. 
Claims requiring court or arbitration decisions are estimated individually by the Company’s lawyer. 
Independent loss adjustors normally estimate property claims. Management reviews its provisions for claims 
incurred, and claims incurred but not reported, on a periodic basis. 
In particular, estimates have to be made both for the expected ultimate cost of claims reported at the 
statement of financial position date and for the expected ultimate cost of claims incurred but not yet reported 
(IBNR) at the statement of financial position date. The primary technique adopted by management in 
estimating the cost of reported and IBNR claims, is that of using past claim settlement experience to predict 
future claims settlement trends, and by depending on actuarial reports issued by independent actuary. 
 

Tax provisions 
Tax provisions are calculated based on prevailing tax laws and regulations and the accounting standards. 
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NOTE (5) – PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT  
 

Details: 
Furniture 

and 
equipment 

Motor 
vehicles 

Buildings 
and 

decorations 
Computer 
software Total 

Cost: 
As of January 1, 2016 2,260,882  695,806  3,407,994  134,561  6,499,243 
Additions 44,156  519,816  37,702  6,264  607,938 
Disposals  -  )356,855(    -   -  )356,855(  
As of December 31, 2016 2,305,038  858,767  3,445,696  140,825  6,750,326 
Accumulated 
depreciation:          
As of January 1, 2016 1,758,867  460,951  806,527  98,850  3,125,195 
Additions 102,363  85,710  164,979  14,487  367,539 
Disposals  -  )294,771(    -   -  )294,771(  
As of December 31, 2016 1,861,230  251,890  971,506  113,337  3,197,963 
Net book value:          
As of December 31, 2016 443,808  606,877  2,474,190  27,488  3,552,363 
 

Furniture 
and 

equipment 
Motor 

vehicles 

Buildings 
and 

decorations 
Computer 
software Total 

Cost: 
As of January 1, 2015 2,175,958  594,655  3,389,918  125,331  6,285,862 
Additions 84,924  101,151  47,282  9,230  242,587 
Disposals -  -  (29,206)  -  (29,206) 
As of December 31, 2015 2,260,882  695,806  3,407,994  134,561  6,499,243 
Accumulated 
depreciation: 

         

As of January 1, 2015 1,636,220  383,033  658,285  85,169  2,762,707 
Additions 122,647  77,918  161,663  13,681  375,909 
Disposals -  -  (13,421)  -  (13,421) 
As of December 31, 2015 1,758,867  460,951  806,527  98,850  3,125,195 
Net book value:          
As of December 31, 2015 502,015  234,855  2,601,467  35,711  3,374,048 
 

Property and equipment include USD 1, 673,485 and USD 1,601,987 of fully depreciated assets that are still 
operational as of December 31, 2016, and 2015, respectively. 
 

NOTE (6) – INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 
 

Details: 
 Country of 

Incorporation 
Ownership 
Percentage 2016 2015 

National Towers Company Palestine 92.48% 11,902,665 11,549,665 
Elite Medical Consultancy 
Company Palestine 75.00% 1,291,855 1,225,800 

13,194,520 12,775,465 
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Movement on investment in subsidiaries was as follows: 
2016 2015 

Balance, beginning of the year 12,775,465  11,474,671 
Purchase of investment in subsidiaries 149,528  31,342 
Change in fair value 269,527  1,269,452 
Balance, end of the year 13,194,520  12,775,465 

 
NOTE (7) – DEFERRED TAX ASSETS 
 
Details: 

2016 2015 
Balance, beginning of the year 1,533,286  1,960,790 
Amortizations )904(   (427,504) 
Balance, end of the year 1,532,382  1,533,286 

 
NOTE (8) – INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES 
 
Details: 

Country of 
Incorporation 

Ownership 
Percentage 2016 2015 

Al-Dar Contracting Company (*) Palestine 31.00% 430,790  430,790 
430,790  430,790 

Provision for impairment (430,790)  (430,790) 
-  - 

(*) The Company has fully provided for its investment in Al-Dar Contracting Co. as it is no longer in 
business and the investment is impaired.  
 
Movement on investment in associates account was as follows: 

2016 2015 
Balance, beginning of the year -  218,279 
The Company's share of profits from investment in associates -  523,246 
Disposal of investment in associates -  (741,525) 
Balance, end of the year -  - 
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-Loans granted to associates are as follows: 
 2016 2015 
Al-Dar Contracting Company 148,960  148,960 

148,960  148,960 
Provision for impairment (148,960)  (148,960) 

-  - 
 

 
NOTE (9) – AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS 
 
Details: 
 2016 2015 
Quoted shares 437,655  423,783 
Unquoted shares (*) 1,884,241  1,236,917 

2,321,896  1,660,700 
 

(*) Unquoted shares are stated at cost as their fair values after deducting the accumulated impairment, cannot 
be reliably measured due to the unpredictable nature of future cash flows. The Company’s management 
believes that the fair values of such investments are not materially different from their carrying amounts. 

 

The movement on available-for-sale financial assets during the year was as follows: 

 
2016 2015 

Balance, beginning of the year 1,660,700  1,399,877 
Unrealized loss from available-for-sale financial assets )418,981(    - 
Purchase of available-for-sale financial assets 1,066,305  248,686 
Sale of available-for-sale financial assets (79,414)  - 
Loss on sale of available-for-sale financial assets (31,757)  - 
Change in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets 125,043  12,137 
Balance, end of the year 2,321,896  1,660,700 

 

The movement on the change of the available-for-sale financial assets was as follows:  
2016 2015 

Balance, beginning of the year (39,354)  (51,491) 
Change in fair value 125,043  12,137 
Balance, end of the year 85,689  (39,354) 

 

NOTE (10) – HELD TO MATURITY INVESTMENTS 
 

Details: 

 2016 2015 
Foreign bonds 5,904,158 1,877,592 

 

Interest rate on these financial assets range in between 4.1 % to 7.9 %,and they mature within 2 to 7 years.  
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NOTE (11) – FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 
 
Details:  
 2016 2015 
Investments in local shares 3,203,007  2,635,673 
Investments in foreign shares 3,371,016  1,874,058 
Foreign bonds 5,840,242  8,739,582 

12,414,265  13,249,313 
 
The movement on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss during the year was as follows: 

2016 2015 
Balance, beginning of the year 13,249,313  17,579,825 
Purchase of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 3,460,363  2,910,323 
Sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (4,856,720)  (6,820,296) 
Change in fair value 561,309  (420,539) 
Balance, end of the year 12,414,265  13,249,313 

 
NOTE (12) – ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE  
 
Details: 
 2016 2015 
Due from customers 7,322,979 7,878,800 
Governmental receivables 310,637 247,217 

7,633,616 8,126,017 
Provision for doubtful accounts )893,964(  (897,054) 

6,739,652 7,228,963 
 

The accounts receivable are reported net of any impairment provision. The total impaired account 
receivables amounted to USD 1,588,826 and USD 2,002,429 as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 
respectively. 
 
Following is a summary of the movement on the provision for doubtful accounts: 
 2016 2015 
Balance, beginning of the year 897,054  930,863 
Recovery of provision -  (25,000) 
Written off (3,090)  (8,809) 
Balance, end of the year 893,964  897,054 

 

Following is the aging analysis of the not impaired insurance receivables as of December 31, 2016 and 2015: 

 Past due but not impaired 
  

 
Less than 
90 days 

91-180 
days 

181-270 
days 

271-360 
days 

More than 
361  days Total 

2016 4,031,867  1,549,352  232,967  230,604  -  6,044,790 

2015 4,310,970  1,175,327  420,325  216,966  -  6,123,588 

 
The Company does not obtain any guarantees against these receivables. Nonetheless, management believes 
that the value of the unimpaired receivable is recoverable. 
  



NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY, Public Shareholding Company 
Separate financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(All amounts in US Dollars) 
 

34 
 

NOTE (13) – INSURANCE CONTRACTS LIABILITIES AND REINSURANCE CONTRACTS 
ASSETS 
 
Details: 

2016 2015 
A- Insurance contracts liabilities 

  
 

Outstanding claims provision 25,543,495 21,660,163 
Incurred but not reported claims provision 1,479,795 1,563,727 
Outstanding claims provision for life insurance 90,000  262,975 
Life insurance actuarial provision 19,124  107,939 
Unearned premiums 14,326,590  11,448,094 

 41,459,004  35,042,898 

 
   

B- Reinsurance contracts assets   
Outstanding claims provision 3,717,197 1,523,382 
Incurred but not reported claims provision 528,412  528,412 
Outstanding claims provision for life insurance 65,000 

 
201,545 

Life insurance actuarial provision 9,066 
 

65,481 
Unearned premiums 3,592,993 

 
1,705,932 

 7,912,668  4,024,752 

    
C- Net insurance contracts liabilities    
Outstanding claims provision 21,826,298  20,136,781 
Incurred but not reported claims provision 951,383  1,035,315 
Outstanding claims provision for life insurance 25,000  61,430 
Life insurance actuarial provision 10,058  42,458 
Unearned premiums 10,733,597  9,742,162 
 33,546,336  31,018,146 
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- Outstanding claims provision 
 

The Company and reinsurers’ share from outstanding claims provision per insurance segment were as follows: 
The Company Reinsurers Total 

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 

Motors 16,564,265 14,894,510 480,760 274,650 17,045,025 15,169,160 
Workmen 4,152,686 4,027,273 184,184 152,638 4,336,870 4,179,911 
Third party-personal liability 691,287 703,463 256,467 195,141 947,754 898,604 
Other general insurance 242,082 144,864 582,621 217,016 824,703 361,880 
Engineering 67,084 96,922 330,726 415,161 397,810 512,083 
Fire 113,721 125,222 563,035 704,905 676,756 830,127 
Marine 22,815 11,251 52,902 92,283 75,717 103,534 
Medical 923,741 1,168,591 1,794,914  - 2,718,655 1,168,591 
Life 25,000 61,430 65,000 201,545 90,000 262,975 

22,802,681 21,233,526 4,310,609 2,253,339 27,113,290 23,486,865 
- Unearned premiums (provision for un-expired risk) 
 

The Company and reinsures’ share from unearned  premiums (provision for un-expired risk) per insurance segment were as follows: 
The Company Reinsurers Total 

2016 2015 2016 2015 2016 2015 
Motors 7,558,158 6,688,462  -  - 7,558,158 6,688,462 
Workmen 849,772 639,073 43,758 18,732 893,530 657,805 
Third party-personal liability 144,051 131,988 166,901 165,339 310,952 297,327 
Other general insurance 92,888 64,156 277,619 209,934 370,507 274,090 
Engineering 78,651 60,158 230,652 181,352 309,303 241,510 
Fire 81,044 78,195 1,365,597 951,202 1,446,641 1,029,397 
Marine 14,628 17,549 105,258 110,401 119,886 127,950 
Medical 1,914,405 2,062,581 1,403,208 68,972 3,317,613 2,131,553 
Life 10,058 42,458 9,066 65,481 19,124 107,939 

10,743,655 9,784,620 3,602,059 1,771,413 14,345,714 11,556,033 
 



NATIONAL INSURANCE COMPANY, Public Shareholding Company 
Separate financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2016 
 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
(All amounts in US Dollars) 
 

36 
 

NOTE (14) – INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANIES RECEIVABLE 
 
Details: 
 2016 

 
2015 

Local insurance companies 716,253  885,833 
Due from reinsurers 494,099  184,145 

 
1,210,352  1,069,978 

 
NOTE (15) – OTHER CURRENT ASSETS 
 
Details: 
 2016 

 
2015 

Accrued revenues 299,585  233,806 
Prepaid expenses 367,069  357,579 
Refundable deposits 23,884  26,706 
Tax advances -  35,508 

690,538  653,599 
 
NOTE (16) – DEPOSITS AT BANKS 
 
Details: 
 2016 

 
2015 

Deposits at local banks 15,873,145  16,631,922 
15,873,145  16,631,922 

 

The average interest rate on bank deposits is 3.97 % on ILS deposits, 3.38% on US Dollar deposits, 4.87% 
on Jordanian Dinar deposits, for the financial year ended December 31, 2016.  
 
NOTE (17) – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 
 
Details: 
 2016 2015 
Cash on hand 127,413  61,876 
Cash at banks 1,515,844  617,302 

1,643,257  679,178 
 
For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of: 

2016  2015 
Cash on hand 127,413  61,876 
Cash at banks 1,515,844  617,302 
Deposits at banks maturing within three months 15,873,145  16,631,922  
Less: A deposit restricted to the order of the PCMA (*) (500,000)  (500,000) 

17,016,402  16,811,100 
 

(*) Deposits at banks include a statuary deposit of USD 500,000 restricted to the order of the PCMA 
(Palestine Capital Market Authority) No. (2/ T), for the year of 2007, which is under the Insurance Law No. 
(20) for the year of 2005. PCMA prior approval is required before liquidating this deposit.  
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NOTE (18) –CASH DIVIDENDS 
The Board of Director will propose to the General Assembly in its annual meeting that will be held on March 
30, 2017, the approval of cash dividend of 20% from paid in capital totaling USD 2,400,000 in respect of the 
financial year 2016. Further, the General Assembly approved in its meeting held on March 31, 2016, the 
distribution of cash dividends of 12.5% from paid-in-capital totaling USD 1,500,000 in respect of the 
financial year 2015. 
 

NOTE (19) RESERVES  
 

Statutory reserve 
According to the Companies’ Law (12) of the year 1964, a deduction of 10% of the net annual profit is 
transferred to the statutory reserve and will continue until the total reserve equals 25% of the paid-in-share 
capital. The statutory reserve is not available for distribution to shareholders. 
According to the Company’s bylaws, a deduction of 10% of the net profit is transferred to the statutory 
reserve and will continue until the total reserve equals 50% of the capital. 
 

Voluntary reserve 
The General Assembly decided in its meeting that was held on March 27, 2014 to transfer an amount of USD 
1,750,000 to the voluntary reserve account for which the balance will become USD 3,000,000, knowing that 
a total of USD 1,250,000 was transferred to this account based on the General Assembly decision on March 
24, 2012. 
This reserve may be used for purposes as deemed appropriate by the Board of Directors and is available for 
distribution in full or in parts to shareholders based on General Assembly’s resolution.   
 
NOTE (20) – PROVISION FOR EMPLOYEES’ INDEMNITY  
 

Details: 
 2016 2015 
Balance, beginning of the year 3,289,985  2,968,955 
Additions during the year 178,000  382,682 
Payments during the year (120,908)  (61,652) 
Balance, end of the year 3,347,077  3,289,985 

 
NOTE (21) – INSURANCE AND REINSURANCE COMPANIES PAYABLE 
 

Details: 
 2016 2015 
Due to reinsurers 1,669,105  1,037,000 
Excess of loss reserve (*) 41,358  23,034 
Unexpired risk reinsurance reserve (**) 900,676  934,552 
Local insurance companies (***) 24,324  312 

2,635,463  1,994,898 
 

(*) This item represents reinsurers’ share of premiums ceded to reinsurers (excess of loss reserve) that is 
related to excess of loss treaties for motor vehicles, workmen compensation and professional indemnity. 

(**) This item represents 40% of premiums ceded for all insurance types, except for marine insurance, where 
the Company keeps 25% of the premiums ceded for one year, and then releases it to reinsurers with 
interest of 0.5%.  

(***) This item represents the amounts due to local insurance companies resulted from facultative 
reinsurance arrangements. 
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NOTE (22) – ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 
 
Details: 
 2016 2015 
Accounts payable 2,577,012  2,502,540 

Dividends payable 584,519  522,899 

 

3,161,531  3,025,439 

 
NOTE (23) – TAX PROVISIONS 
 
Following is the movement on the tax provisions during the year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, 
respectively: 
 

2016 2015 

Balance, beginning of the year 1,452,053  2,585,397 
Payments during the year )1,793,923(   )1,934,603(  
Additions during the year 1,439,545  801,259 

Balance, end of the year  1,097,675  1,452,053 
 
Tax expense appears in the statement of income as follows: 

2016 2015 
(Amortizations) deferred tax assets (904)  (427,504) 
Provision for the year (1,439,545)  (801,259) 
Tax expense for the year  (1,440,449)  (1,228,763) 

 
 
 

Reconciliation between accounting income and taxable income is as follows: 
2016 2015 

Accounting profit before tax 5,413,144  3,489,095 
Non-taxable income (407,176)  (2,871,354) 
Non-deductible expenses 592,898  1,482,982 
Taxable income for VAT 5,598,866  2,100,723 
VAT (772,257)  (289,755) 
Payroll VAT (487,484)  (434,642) 
Income not subject to VAT (204,193)  - 
Taxable income 4,134,932  1,376,326 
Income tax (620,240)  (206,449) 
Income tax- life insurance (5,925)  (56,802) 
Income tax deductions (101,729)  (309,167) 
Income tax discounts 60,606  60,914 
Tax expense (1,439,545)  (801,259) 
Effective tax rate  26.59%  22.96% 

 
To the date of these financial statements, The Company did not reach a final settlement with the Income Tax 
Department and Value Added Tax Department for their operations for 2016. 
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NOTE (24) – OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES 
 
Details: 

2016 2015 
Accrued expenses 986,050  229,875 
Board of Directors’ remunerations 105,000  153,500 
Accrued commissions 76,576  184,261 
Due to policyholders 522,214  434,023 
Accrued employees’ vacation and bonus 299,529  315,628 
Saving fund 53,226  752 
Due to agents 18,255  25,059 
Others 8,576  16,233 
VAT on payroll 514,313  509,917 

2,583,739  1,869,248 
 
NOTE (25) – SEGMENTS INFORMATION 
 
For management purposes, the Company is organized to consist of insurance segments, which are motors, 
fire, workmen, third party personal liability, engineering, marine, medical, life insurance and other general 
insurance. In addition to the management of investment segments, which are investment in subsidiaries, 
investment in associates, available-for-sale financial assets, financial assets at fair value through profit or 
loss, held-to-maturity investments, and deposits at banks. 
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The following schedule is a summary of the revenues and operating results for the Company operating segments for the year ended December 31, 2016:  

Motors Fire Marine Engineering 

Other 
general 

insurance Workmen 

Third party 
personal 
liability Medical Life Investments Total 

Insurance premiums 14,982,924 2,964,188 313,477 771,658 1,942,525 2,487,835 714,970 9,787,315 57,159 - 34,022,051 
Earned Insurance fees  4,947,597 563,316 88,204 348,745 469,869 1,132,692 185,540 1,051,467 1,448 - 8,788,878 
Gross premiums 19,930,521 3,527,504 401,681 1,120,403 2,412,394 3,620,527 900,510 10,838,782 58,607 - 42,810,929 
Change in unearned premiums (869,696) (417,244) 8,064 (67,793) (96,417) (235,725) (13,625) (1,186,060) 88,815 - (2,789,681) 

19,060,825 3,110,260 409,745 1,052,610 2,315,977 3,384,802 886,885 9,652,722 147,422 - 40,021,248 
Gross premiums ceded to reinsures (724,662) (2,811,298) (270,797) (600,087) (1,537,360) (151,096) (352,332) (4,205,067) (14,670) - (10,667,369) 
Reinsurers share of change in unearned premiums - 414,395 (5,143) 49,300 67,685 25,026 1,562 1,334,236 (56,415) - 1,830,646 

(724,662) (2,396,903) (275,940) (550,787) (1,469,675) (126,070) (350,770) (2,870,831) (71,085) - (8,836,723) 
Net premiums retained 18,336,163 713,357 133,805 501,823 846,302 3,258,732 536,115 6,781,891 76,337 - 31,184,525 
Gain resulting from translating unearned premiums  104,237 - - - - - - - - - 104,237 
Net premiums revenues before commissions 18,440,400 713,357 133,805 501,823 846,302 3,258,732 536,115 6,781,891 76,337 - 31,288,762 

           
Commissions income from reinsurers (74,393) 605,778 123,542 194,212 270,293 - 47,138 93,681 1,816 - 1,262,067 
Commissions paid (1,167,932) (72,930) (7,902) (59,910) (35,715) (111,128) (27,954) (30,592) - - (1,514,063) 
Net premiums revenues after commissions 17,198,075 1,246,205 249,445 636,125 1,080,880 3,147,604 555,299 6,844,980 78,153 - 31,036,766 

           
Claims paid 10,648,109 360,976 320,568 394,348 1,425,531 1,891,473 122,975 6,733,582 4,700 - 21,902,262 
Claims ceded to reinsurers (101,670) (310,915) (244,608) (311,298) (1,157,760) (96,799) (14,547) (922,842) - - (3,160,439) 
Net claims paid 10,546,439 50,061 75,960 83,050 267,771 1,794,674 108,428 5,810,740 4,700 - 18,741,823 
Change in outstanding claims provision 1,875,865 (153,371) (27,817) (114,273) 462,823 156,959 49,150 1,550,064 (172,975) - 3,626,425 
Change in outstanding claims provision ceded to reinsurers (206,110) 141,870 39,381 84,435 (365,605) (31,546) (61,326) (1,794,914) 136,545 - (2,057,270) 
Gain from translating outstanding claims provision (116,521) - - - - (54,130) - - - - (170,651) 
Net claims incurred 12,099,673 38,560 87,524 53,212 364,989 1,865,957 96,252 5,565,890 (31,730) - 20,140,327 
Net insurance profit before investment income and general 
and administrative expenses 5,098,402 1,207,645 161,921 582,913 715,891 1,281,647 459,047 1,279,090 109,883 - 10,896,439 

           
Investment income allocated to insurance segments 599,271 80,402 9,482 33,688 68,985 108,861 25,171 210,770 1,762 - 1,138,392 
General and administrative expenses allocated to insurance 
segments (3,601,531) (493,163) (57,631) (205,670) (442,910) (653,834) (154,674) (700,162) (11,638) - (6,321,213) 
Net insurance profit after investment income and general 
and administrative expenses 2,096,142 794,884 113,772 410,931 341,966 736,674 329,544 789,698 100,007 - 5,713,618 
            
unallocated expenses and revenues            
unallocated investment income - - - - - - - - - 345,235 345,235 
Gain on disposal of property and equipment - - - - - - - - - 84,215 84,215 
Currency Exchange Loss - - - - - - - - - (523,220) (523,220) 
Unallocated  general and administrative expenses - - - - - - - - - )476,231(  )476,231(  
Unrealized gain from subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - 269,527 269,527 
Net profit before tax  2,096,142 794,884 113,772 410,931 341,966 736,674 329,544 789,698 100,007 (300,474) 5,413,144 
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The following schedule is a summary of the revenues and operating results for the Company operating segments for the year ended December 31, 2015: 

Motors Fire Marine Engineering 

Other 
general 

insurance Workmen 

Third 
party 

personal 
liability Medical Life Investments Total 

Insurance premiums 13,374,698 2,491,681 420,739 650,242 978,673 1,961,925 711,098 6,336,404 1,136,034 - 28,061,494 
Earned Insurance fees  2,459,945 533,606 116,018 287,208 358,705 872,722 165,408 1,454,453 278,701 - 6,526,766 
Gross premiums 15,834,643 3,025,287 536,757 937,450 1,337,378 2,834,647 876,506 7,790,857 1,414,735 - 34,588,260 
Change in unearned premiums (266,704) (421,314) 117,653 (45,744) (18,213) 98,275 (5,623) (188,600) (50,464) - (780,734) 

15,567,939 2,603,973 654,410 891,706 1,319,165 2,932,922 870,883 7,602,257 1,364,271 - 33,807,526 
Gross premiums ceded to reinsures (454,852) (2,322,989) (365,201) (509,390) (802,874) (88,952) (366,593) (170,577) (849,262) - (5,930,690) 
Reinsurers share of change in unearned premiums - 405,020 (112,544) 28,824 15,684 (19,796) (3,312) 38,242 40,543 - 392,661 

(454,852) (1,917,969) (477,745) (480,566) (787,190) (108,748) (369,905) (132,335) (808,719) - (5,538,029) 
Net premiums retained 15,113,087 686,004 176,665 411,140 531,975 2,824,174 500,978 7,469,922 555,552 - 28,269,497 
Loss resulting from translating unearned premiums (16,424) - - - - - - - - - (16,424) 
Net premiums revenues before commissions 15,096,663 686,004 176,665 411,140 531,975 2,824,174 500,978 7,469,922 555,552 - 28,253,073 
Commissions income from reinsurers - 505,801 133,727 152,722 193,235 - 49,585 - (6,118) - 1,028,952 
Commissions paid (995,884) (71,024) (11,803) (73,594) (32,973) (74,800) (25,888) (62,396) (1,085) - (1,349,447) 
Net premiums revenues after commissions 14,100,779 1,120,781 298,589 490,268 692,237 2,749,374 524,675 7,407,526 548,349 - 27,932,578 
Claims paid 8,784,000 506,751 49,409 357,170 81,720 1,417,203 96,438 9,594,380 285,390 - 21,172,461 
Claims ceded to reinsurers (6,287) (461,294) (36,067) (303,706) (52,159) (50,065) (5,969) - (234,639) - (1,150,186) 
Net claims paid 8,777,713 45,457 13,342 53,464 29,561 1,367,138 90,469 9,594,380 50,751 - 20,022,275 
Change in outstanding claims provision (307,678) 245,209 95,800 (42,523) 119,144 557,903 76,739 82,813 177,040 - 1,004,447 
Change in outstanding claims provision ceded to reinsurers (26,390) (183,161) (86,434) 74,775 (113,652) (37,056) (18,570) - (134,572) - (525,060) 
Loss from translating outstanding claims provision 15,423 - - - - 8,014 - - - - 23,437 
Net claims incurred 8,459,068 107,505 22,708 85,716 35,053 1,895,999 148,638 9,677,193 93,219 - 20,525,099 
Net insurance profit before investment income and general 
and administrative expenses 5,641,711 1,013,276 275,881 404,552 657,184 853,375 376,037 (2,269,667) 455,130 - 7,407,479 
Investment income allocated to insurance segments 386,273 58,639 10,144 22,819 27,359 68,998 19,710 189,637 34,436 - 818,015 
General and administrative expenses allocated to insurance 
segments (3,375,598) (520,541) (89,235) (202,422) (244,923) (608,215) (175,314) (830,949) (279,085) - (6,326,282) 
Net insurance profit after investment income and general 
and administrative expenses 2,652,386 551,374 196,790 224,949 439,620 314,158 220,433 (2,910,979) 210,481 - 1,899,212 
            
unallocated expenses and revenues 
unallocated investment income - - - - - - - - - 1,182,483 1,182,483 
Loss on disposal of property and equipment - - - - - - - - - (5,785) (5,785) 
Currency Exchange Loss - - - - - - - - - (404,716) (404,716) 
Unallocated  general and administrative expenses - - - - - - - - - (476,551) (476,551) 
 Recovery of accounts receivable - - - - - - - - - 25,000 25,000 
Unrealized gain from subsidiaries - - - - - - - - - 1,269,452 1,269,452 
Net profit before tax  2,652,386 551,374 196,790 224,949 439,620 314,158 220,433 (2,910,979) 210,481 1,589,883 3,489,095 
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NOTE (26) – GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 
 
Details: 
General and Administrative expenses 2016 2015 
Salaries and related benefits 3,720,270 3,772,405 
VAT on payroll 487,484 434,642 
Rent 375,335 349,666 
Depreciation of property and equipment 367,539 375,909 
Marketing and promotion 217,897 257,381 
Bank interest and charges 30,612 16,544 
Water, electricity and fuel 127,935 110,449 
Maintenance 62,488 58,684 
Telecommunications 229,233 199,337 
Transportation 146,698 64,436 
Vehicles expenses 81,985 210,165 
Hospitality and cleaning 164,690 101,421 
Professional fees 62,617 81,157 
Training expenses 77,666 51,262 
Property tax 3,072 3,260 
Subscription and license fees 106,900 106,833 
Printings and stationery 149,360 157,552 
Insurance expenses 193,703 180,774 
Donations 80,780 93,582 
Board of Directors’ remunerations 105,000 153,500 
Conference and meeting  - 1,256 
Miscellaneous 6,180 22,618 

6,797,444 6,802,833 
 
General and administrative expenses were allocated to insurance segments as follows: 

2016 2015 
Motors 3,601,531  3,375,598 
Fire 493,163  520,541 
Workmen 653,834  608,215 
Third party-personal liability 154,674  175,314 
Other general insurance 442,910  244,923 
Engineering 205,670  202,422 
Marine 57,631  89,235 
Medical 700,162  830,949 
Life 11,638  279,085 
Total for Insurance segments 6,321,213  6,326,282 
Expenses not allocated to insurance segments 476,231  476,551 
Total general and administrative expenses 6,797,444  6,802,833 
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NOTE (27) – INVESTMENT INCOME  
 
Details: 

2016 2015 
(Loss) Gain from sale of financial assets at fair value through profit or 

loss  (241,022) 1,028,358 
Loss on sale of available- for- sale financial assets (31,757)  - 
Dividends income 349,198 483,918 
Change in  financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 561,309 (420,539) 
Unrealized loss from available- for- sale financial assets (418,981)  - 
Deposits income 622,869 515,155 
Bonds yields 642,011 393,606 

1,483,627 2,000,498 
Investment income allocated to insurance segments (1,138,392) (818,015) 

345,235 1,182,483 
 
NOTE (28) - EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO THE COMPANY’S 
SHAREHOLDERS 
 

Earnings per share attributable to the Company’s shareholders were calculated based on the weighted 
average as follows: 

2016 2015 
Income for the year attributable to the shareholders 3,972,695  2,260,332 
The weighted average of subscribed stocks 12,000,000 12,000,000 
Basic earnings per share from the yearly profit attributable to the 

Company’s shareholders 0.3311  0.1884 
 
NOTE (29) – RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 
 

Related parties represent subsidiaries companies, associated companies, major shareholders, directors and 
key management personnel of the Company, and entities controlled, jointly controlled or significantly 
influenced by such parties. Pricing policies and terms of the transactions between the Company and the 
related parties are approved by the Company’s Board of Directors.  
 

A – Sales of Insurance Contracts 
Nature of 

relationship 2016 2015 
Jerusalem Pharmaceuticals Company Sister Company 125,643 148,237 
National Towers Company Subsidiary Company 16,841 15,656 
Elite Medical Consultancy Company Subsidiary Company 48,694 39,135 
United Company for Securities Sister Company 17,150 11,902 
The National Company for Managing 

Health Expenditures Sister Company 26,790 21,996 
Masrouji Company Sister Company  148,550  139,271 
Others Board of Directors 3,525 3,311 

387,193 379,508 
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B – Service contracts 
Nature of 

relationship 2016 2015 
National Towers Company Subsidiary Company 210,828  232,722 
The National Company for Managing 

Health Expenditures Sister Company  471,276    639,150 
 

C – Accounts receivables 
Nature of 

relationship 2016 2015 
Jerusalem Pharmaceuticals Company Sister Company 7,137  6,623 
National Towers Company Subsidiary Company   -  1,495 
Elite Medical Consultancy Company Subsidiary Company 8,862  11,146 
United Company for Securities Sister Company 1,482  1,697 
Masrouji Company Sister Company   -  7,355 
Others Board of Directors 8,453  6,606 

25,934  34,922 
 

D – Accounts Payable: 
Nature of 

relationship 2016 2015 

Masrouji Company Sister Company  215,136  - 
National Towers Company Subsidiary Company  2,002  - 
The National Company for Managing 

Health Expenditures Sister Company  518,713  258,541 

Elite Medical Consultancy Company Subsidiary Company - 383,632 
735,851 642,173 

 

E – Loans to related parties: 
Nature of 

relationship 2016 2015 
Al-Dar Contracting Company Associate Company 148,960 148,960 

148,960 148,960 
 

F – Salaries and benefits for senior management: 
Nature of 

relationship 2016  2015 
Short-term benefits Senior management 999,219 927,644 
Upper Management’s Provision for 

employees indemnity Senior management 83,715 104,147 
Remunerations and expenses of the 

Board of Directors members Board of Directors 105,000 153,500 
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NOTE (30) – COMPARATIVE FIGURES 
 

As a consequence of clarity in tax practices that resulted from applying the Palestinian Income Tax Act 
issued at the end of 2011 and the tax settlements reached by the Company in 2011 to 2015, necessary and 
additional tax provisions were retroactively calculated and recorded by the Company’s management. 
 

- The impact on the retained earnings and the statement of financial position balances as at January 1, 
2015: 

Before 
Restatement 

Amount Restated 
Tax provisions 1,767,858  817,539  2,585,397 
Retained earnings 4,946,268  (817,539)  4,128,729 

 
- The impact on the statement of  financial position and the statement of income balances as at 

December 31, 2015: 

Before 
Restatement 

Amount Restated 
Statement of financial position:      
Tax provisions 325,347  1,126,706  1,452,053 
Statement of income:      
Tax expense (919,596)  (309,167)  (1,228,763) 

 
NOTE (31) – CONTINGENT LIABILITY 
 

There are contingent liabilities as bank guarantees issued locally by the Company, such as the ones issued to 
enter bids. These liabilities amounted to USD 313,323 and USD 298,529 as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, 
respectively. 
 
NOTE (32) – LITIGATIONS AGAINST THE COMPANY 
 

There are numerous of outstanding litigations against the Company as part of its normal course of business. 
Management believes (as supported by the company legal consultants) that the amounts expected to be paid 
in return for these litigations and the results that may have had, would not materially affect the financial 
position of the company and the results of its operations. 
 
NOTE (33) – GEOGRAPHICAL RISK 
 

The Company operates its activities in Palestine. The instability of the political and economic situation in the 
region increases the risk of the Company to exercise its activities and adversely affect its performance. 
 


